TRADITION FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED TRADITION ENERGY MTF TRADING PLATFORM

RULEBOOK 16 January 2014

Contents

	P	age
	Chapter 1 - General Provisions	
1	Definitions and Interpretation	1
2	Application	
3	Amendments	
4	The Platform	
5	Governing Law and Jurisdiction	
	Chapter 2 - Participation In the Platform	
1	Application Procedure	5
2	Eligibility	5
3	Members Obligations	6
4	Access to the System	6
5	Resignation, Suspension and Termination	7
	Chapter 3 - Products Traded on the Platform	
1	Eligible Products	8
	Chapter 4 - Trading Rules	
1	Trading Days, Orders, Order Book and Clearing & Settlement	9
2	Error Trades	
3	System-Related Error Trades	9
4	Suspension of Trading	10
5	Market Surveillance and Service Disruptions	11
	Chapter 5 – Powers of Tradition And The Appeals Panel	
1	Tradition - Disciplinary Action	12
2	Tradition - Sanctions	12
3	Tradition - Procedures	12
4	Appeals Panel – Procedures	13
	Chapter 7 Other Provisions	
1	Obligation to Cooperate	
2	Notice	16
3	Use and Exploitation of Data	16

PRODUCT APPENDICES

1 FINANCIAL PRODUCTS TRADEABLE ON THE PLATFORM: COMMODITIES

CHAPTER 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

1 Definitions and Interpretation

In these rules, the following expressions shall have the meanings set out below:

Appeals Panel means a panel which shall be responsible for disciplinary matters

and which shall comprise one (1) representative appointed by Tradition and a minimum of two (2) independent representatives, not affiliated with Tradition or any Member involved in the

disciplinary matter;

Board means the board of directors of Tradition;

Eligibility Criteria means the criteria for the time being set by Tradition which

determine eligibility to become a Member and participate in the

System;

Financial Products means the instruments admitted to trading on the Platform from

time to time and as described in more detail in the Financial

Product Appendix to these Rules;

Insolvency Event means, in relation to any Member:

- (a) that an order is made by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a resolution is passed, for the liquidation, bankruptcy or administration of such Member or a notice of appointment of a bankruptcy trustee or administrator of such Member is filed with a court of competent jurisdiction;
- (b) the appointment of a manager, receiver, administrative receiver, administrator, trustee or other similar officer of such Member or in respect of any part or any of its assets;
- (c) such Member convenes a meeting of its creditors generally or makes or proposes any arrangement or composition with, or any assignment for the benefit of, its creditors generally (otherwise than in the course of a reorganisation or restructuring previously approved in writing by Tradition);
- (d) such Member is unable to pay its debts as they become due or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they are due or is insolvent;
- (e) a petition is presented for the winding up of the Member, provided that an Insolvency Event shall not have occurred due to the filing of winding-up petition which is discharged, stayed or dismissed within thirty (30) days of commencement; or
- (f) any action occurs in respect of any Member in

any jurisdiction which is analogous to any of those set out in sub-paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d) or (e) immediately above:

FCA means the Financial Conduct Authority of the UK, or any

successor, substituted or replacement authority in the UK;

Market Abuse has the meaning given to it in section 118 of the Financial

Services and Markets Act 2000;

Member means a person who has been admitted to membership pursuant

to the rules set out in Chapter 2;

MiFID means the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

(2004/39/EC);

Platform means the commodities market operated by Tradition using the

Trayport system;

Rules means these rules as the same may be amended, varied,

extended, supplemented or replaced from time to time;

System means the electronic trading system operated and administered

by Tradition for the purpose of the Platform;

Trading Day means a day on which the Platform is open for business other

than a day which is a public holiday in the relevant jurisdiction;

Tradition means Tradition Financial Services Limited;

Tradition Group

Company

Tradition as well as any subsidiary undertakings of such parent undertakings and "parent undertaking" and "subsidiary undertaking" have the respective meanings ascribed to them in

means all subsidiary undertakings and parent undertakings of

section 1162 of the Companies Act 2006; and

UK means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

References to statutes, statutory instruments, rules of a regulatory authority or provisions thereof shall be construed as references to any of the foregoing as they may be amended, extended varied or replaced from time to time.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.

Financial Product Appendices to these Rules form part of, and are subject to, these Rules.

2 Application

- 2.1 These Rules set out the terms and conditions which shall apply to participation in and trading on the Platform for all Members in order to ensure orderly operation of the relevant market(s) operated by Tradition.
- 2.2 The Platform enables Members to participate in trading Financial Products by means of the System.

3 Amendments

- 3.1 Subject to the remaining provisions of this Rule 3, Tradition has the right to amend, extend, vary or supplement the Rules from time to time to the extent necessary or desirable in light of prevailing market conditions.
- 3.2 Members shall be notified of any changes at least five Trading Days prior to the effective date thereof, other than those required to be made without delay by law or regulation or unless a short-term action of Tradition becomes necessary due to particular market conditions.
- 3.3 If any modification of the Rules materially adversely affects the rights or obligations of any Member, that Member may, within five Trading Days of being notified of such modification, resign its participation and cease to be a Member by giving notice in writing to Tradition.
- 3.4 Any amendments, extensions, variations or supplements to the Rules shall be notified to Members by way of a circular setting out the announcement of Tradition sent to Members electronically via e-mail (to the email address notified by the Member to Tradition from time to time) and posted on the Tradition website.

4 The Platform

- 4.1 The Platform enables Members admitted to trading to enter into Financial Product transactions by use of the System in the manner provided in the Rules.
- 4.2 The System will display all prices and automatically selects the best price in terms of highest bid and lowest offer prices and if there are two identical bid or offer prices then priority will strictly be given to the earlier price submitted to the System. A price is valid in accordance with its particular order type, as may be set out in the applicable Financial Product Appendix from time to time.
- 4.3 Parties to Financial Product transactions shall remain anonymous to Members on the System prior to the matching of a trade, but immediately following execution of a trade the Members who are party to that trade shall be made known to one another by electronic confirmations from the System to the relevant Members' systems ('straight-through-processing').

5 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

- 5.1 These Rules shall be construed and applied in accordance with English law.
- 5.2 Except where these Rules provide expressly to the contrary, any dispute between a Member and Tradition concerning these Rules, any transaction effected pursuant to these Rules, and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with these Rules, shall be governed by the laws of England and Wales and all such matters and disputes related to the same shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts, to which all Members submit.

CHAPTER 2 - PARTICIPATION IN THE PLATFORM

1 Application Procedure

- 1.1 Applications for admission to participate in the Platform shall be made through the submission to Tradition of an application pack.
- 1.2 The application must include all supporting information as stipulated in the application form, failing which the application will be returned to the applicant firm and will not be processed until fully completed.
- 1.3 All applications shall be determined by Tradition and complete applications will, in normal circumstances, be determined within 10 Trading Days of receipt.
- 1.4 An applicant may appeal a decision made by Tradition pursuant to Rule 1.3 above by serving a notice of appeal in writing to the Board at Tradition, Beaufort House, 15 St Botolph Street, London, EC3A 7QX, United Kingdom within 10 Trading Days of a notice under Chapter 2, Rule 1.3 above. The notice of appeal should specify clearly the grounds upon which the applicant is appealing and the reasons why it believes it should be admitted to membership. Upon receipt of such notice, the Board shall consider the grounds of appeal stated in the notice of appeal together with the representations submitted by Tradition to the Board. The Board shall determine the matter within 30 days of receipt of the notice of appeal and the Board's decision shall be final.

2 Eligibility

- 2.1 An application for admission to membership of the Platform will only be considered if the applicant meets the following requirements:
 - (a) the applicant:
 - (i) Is an EEA regulated investment firm or credit institution (as defined under MiFID); or
 - (ii) is licensed and supervised by a financial market supervisory authority in its country of domicile, and pursuant to the applicable laws of that country be a bank (authorised to conduct deposit taking business) or have a status equivalent to that of a full scope BIPRU firm; or
 - (iii) has the suitable background and experience and meets the criteria of being classified as a Professional Client under FCA Rules (COBS 3.5.1) or equivalent in another jurisdiction, at all times; and
 - (b) the applicant must have technical and organisational facilities sufficient for the orderly settlement of Financial Product transactions to be assured and the technical requirements for connection to the System must be met. Tradition must be satisfied that the applicant has or will have sufficiently completed conformance testing prior to conducting business on the Platform; and
 - (c) the applicant must not be subject to an Insolvency Event; and
 - (d) the applicant must have accepted Tradition's standard terms of business and entered such agreements with Tradition as it may specify in relation to the applicant's membership of the Platform; and

(e) to facilitate the supervision of Members, a reasonable exchange of information between the FCA and any relevant foreign supervisory authorities must be possible.

3 Members Obligations

- 3.1 Each Member will be responsible for all orders and actions taken on its account by its officers, employees and agents.
- 3.2 A Member must at all times have adequate systems and controls to minimise the risk of error in relation to trades submitted to the Platform and to ensure that its conduct on the Platform complies with these Rules.
- 3.3 All Members are responsible for ensuring that their staff are adequately trained to use the Platform and that they are properly supervised when using the Platform.
- 3.4 Members must not, in respect of any of their business on the Platform:
 - (a) commit any act or engage in any course of conduct which creates or is likely to create a false or misleading impression as to the market in, or the price of, any Financial Product; or
 - (b) do or engage in any act or course of conduct which is likely to harm the integrity or stability of the System.
- 3.5 A Member must inform Tradition without delay if:
 - (a) it or any of its respective trading employees is unable to comply with the Rules;
 - (b) an Insolvency Event occurs in relation to it;
 - (c) it commits a material breach of these Rules, upon becoming aware thereof; or
 - (d) it ceases to meet any of the Eligibility Criteria.
- 3.6 Members are responsible for retaining records of all trades entered into on the Platform for a minimum of 5 years;
- 3.7 Members are responsible for ensuring that, with respect to trading, relevant digital flows are recorded and records are maintained for a minimum of 5 years;
- 3.8 Members must continue to meet the Eligibility Criteria at all times whilst a Member.
- 3.9 Specific Member obligations in relation to particular Financial Product types shall be set out in the applicable Financial Product Appendix to these Rules from time to time.
- 3.10 Members will be bound by these Rules and by any decision of Tradition made pursuant to these Rules.

4 Access to the System

- 4.1 Members will be granted access to the System by Tradition in order to enter into Financial Product transactions.
- 4.2 Every Member is obliged to apply for the issuance of a personal login (user code) for every employee who will be trading through the System and for every other employee who needs

access to the System for other reasons (e.g system management, back-office responsibilities). Members are obliged promptly to notify Tradition of any changes in personnel who have been allocated a personal access code by Tradition so that access rights can be terminated or new access rights granted where necessary in the case of individual employees.

4.3 No Member shall allow unauthorised third parties to use the System for any purpose. The personal access code allocated to a specific employee is personal to that individual and may not be used by other persons. Members must have systems and procedures in place designed to ensure that logons are only used by the employees to whom they have been issued.

5 Resignation, Suspension and Termination

- 5.1 A Member may resign its participation and cease to be a Member by giving ten (10) Trading Days' prior notice in writing to Tradition (or such shorter period as may be required to comply with any applicable law or regulation). Tradition may, in addition, at its absolute discretion waive some or all of the notice period.
- 5.2 Membership may be suspended or terminated in accordance with Chapter 5. In addition, Tradition may immediately suspend a Member's or an individual's access to the System or any part of the System or any Financial Product traded on the System or refuse to accept an order to the System or decline to allocate a personal access code to an individual in the event that Tradition, in its reasonable opinion, considers such action to be necessary to preserve the security or integrity of the System, to prevent violation of laws or regulations or to protect other users of the System from fraud. Tradition shall, so far as reasonably practicable and permitted by applicable law, give affected users reasonable advance notice of any such action and the effective time and date of such action. A Member may appeal a decision to suspend a Member or individual pursuant to this Rule 5.2 in accordance with the provisions set out in Chapter 5 Rule 3.3 and any such appeal will be heard in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 5 Rule 4 (and for the avoidance of doubt the suspension shall remain in place during the determination of any appeal).
- 5.3 Resignation, suspension or termination of a Member's participation shall be without prejudice to the obligations of the Member under Chapter 1 Rule 5, Chapter 2 Rules 3.6, 3.7, 3.10, 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5, Chapter 5, Chapter 6 and Chapter 7 Rules 1 and 3 which shall survive such resignation or termination of the membership and endure through any suspension.
- In the event of resignation, suspension or termination of a Member's participation, the Member shall ensure that prior to the effective time and date of the resignation, suspension or termination (as the case may be), any unmatched orders and/or prices which may result in the conclusion of Financial Product transactions by such Member have been cancelled. In the event of failure on the part of the Member promptly to effect such cancellation, Tradition shall cancel the unmatched orders and/or prices. Following resignation, suspension or termination, the Member shall continue to be liable to perform Financial Product transactions concluded by it prior to the resignation, suspension or termination (as the case may be).
- 5.5 At the time and date that the resignation, suspension or termination of the participation of a Member becomes effective, Tradition shall be entitled to take all measures necessary to prevent the Member concerned from entering into new Financial Product transactions on the Platform.

CHAPTER 3 - PRODUCTS TRADED ON THE PLATFORM

1 Eligible Products

- 1.1 Tradition shall determine which Financial Products, from time to time, shall be admitted to trading on the Platform and the parameters for Financial Product transactions to be entered.
- 1.2 Full details of Financial Products are set out in the applicable Financial Product Appendix.
- 1.3 Changes in the specifications of the Financial Product types available via the System shall be determined by Tradition and made known to all Members in accordance with Chapter 1, Rule 3.

CHAPTER 4 - TRADING RULES

1 Trading Days, Orders, Order Book and Clearing & Settlement

1.1 Details of Financial Products, Trading Days, order types and Clearing & Settlement specifications for each Financial Product tradable on the Platform can be found in the applicable Financial Product Appendix from time to time.

2 Error Trades

- 2.1 Financial Product transactions effected through the System by means of the user identification of a Member shall be binding on such Member subject to any other provision of these Rules.
- 2.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tradition may cancel a Financial Product transaction in accordance with the policy set out in Chapter 4 Rule 3.

3 System-Related Error Trades

- 3.1 Tradition may unilaterally cancel a Financial Product transaction where such transaction constitutes a "System-Related Error Trade".
- 3.2 For the purpose of this Rule 3, a System-Related Error Trade shall occur where, due to an issue with the System, a Financial Product transaction is entered into:
 - (a) in the name of a Member without the knowledge or authority of such a Member;
 - (b) by a Member's authorised trader after a notification to disable access to the System in respect of that authorised trader has been received by Tradition; or
 - (c) which is manifestly erroneous.
- 3.3 In the event that Tradition becomes aware of a System-Related Error Trade or is notified by a Member of a System-Related Error Trade (such notification from a Member to contain the information set out in Chapter 4 Rule 3.5 and be sent in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 4 Rule 3.4 and at least 30 minutes before the cut-off time for Tradition to send the System-Related Error Trade Cancellation Notice as set out in this Rule), Tradition shall issue a notice, containing the information required by Chapter 4 Rule 3.6, to all affected Members where it intends to cancel a Financial Product transaction pursuant to this Rule (a "System-Related Error Trade Cancellation Notice"). Tradition shall issue a System-Related Error Trade Cancellation Notice as soon as practicable following the System-Related Error Trade coming to its attention and in any event the System-Related Error Trade Cancellation Notice must be issued: (i) at least two (2) hours before the end of the operating times for the applicable clearing house (as may be defined in the Clearing House's applicable rules and procedures) in the case of a trade which is submitted to clearing; and (ii) for all other trades, no more than one (1) hour after the end of the Trading Day, in each case on the Trading Day on which the System-Related Error Trade is alleged to have occurred in order for the procedures in Chapter 4 Rules 3.7 to 3.10 to apply.
- 3.4 Any notification relating to a System-Related Error Trade must be made by a Member to Tradition:

- (a) by email to the Tradition email address at Trayport@tradition.com or, where communicated by phone, then confirmed by email promptly (and in any event no later than ten (10) minutes after the end of such phone communication); and
- (b) all communications must be from a suitably authorised personnel of the Member.
- 3.5 All notifications from Members relating to a System-Related Error Trade must contain:
 - (a) Member's primary contact details (name and direct line);
 - (b) all specific details of the transaction(s);
 - (c) timestamps for each transaction; and
 - (d) Member's reason for considering the transaction to be a System-Related Error Trade.
- 3.6 A System-Related Error Trade Cancellation Notice issued by Tradition shall specify the affected counterparty(ies), transaction details and timestamps.
- 3.7 Within thirty (30) minutes after the issue of a System-Related Error Trade Cancellation Notice by Tradition, the Members party to the relevant Financial Product transaction may, jointly, agree that the Financial Product transaction does not constitute a System-Related Error Trade (a "Good Trade"). Good Trades shall not be cancelled but all System-Related Error Trades shall be cancelled by Tradition in accordance with this Rule 3.
- 3.8 Where a System-Related Error Trade is to be cancelled, then Tradition shall notify the counterparty(ies) of the cancellation of the transaction, the transaction shall be cancelled and a cancellation notice sent out to all Members in respect of each such cancelled transaction.
- 3.9 No handling charge will be payable in respect of a cancellation caused by a System-Related Error Trade.
- 3.10 If there is insufficient time in the Trading Day for any of the provisions of this Chapter 4 Rule 3 to be carried out, Tradition and the relevant Members shall use all reasonable endeavours (including within and in accordance with the rules of any applicable clearing house) to ensure that such procedures are completed prior to the commencement of trading on the next Trading Day or, if this is not possible, as soon as practicable after commencement of trading on the next Trading Day after the Trading Day on which the error event occurred.

4 Suspension of Trading

- 4.1 Tradition may at any time suspend trading in whole or in respect of one or more Financial Product types, if it in its discretion, acting reasonably, considers such action necessary to maintain the integrity of the Platform or the fair and orderly trading on the Platform. Tradition shall, as soon as practicable, revoke the suspension of trading in whole or in respect of one or more Financial Product types if, in its opinion acting reasonably, the reason for such suspension has ceased to exist.
- 4.2 The decision of Tradition regarding the suspension of trading of a Financial Product type is generally effected after the close of the day's trading on the Platform and shall be made public to all Members by electronic means to the address specified in the application pack or as may have been otherwise notified by a Member to Tradition prior to the commencement of the following Trading Day.

4.3 If trading in specific Financial Product types is suspended in whole or in part, no new orders or prices may be entered in respect of such Financial Product type for the duration of the suspension and all orders which are not matched prior to the time of suspension shall be cancelled.

5 Market Surveillance and Service Disruptions

- 5.1 Tradition shall maintain in place systems to monitor compliance with the Rules, disorderly trading conditions and conduct that may involve Market Abuse. Tradition shall enforce compliance with these Rules and may take all measures necessary, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of these Rules, to ensure orderly trading and the smooth operation of the System.
- 5.2 In order to ensure an orderly system functionality, the commencement of trading may, at the order of Tradition, be postponed for the entire System or trading hours may be extended or shortened, provided that Tradition shall be under an obligation to restore normal trading and normal trading hours as soon as reasonably practicable.
- 5.3 In the event of technical problems that may lead to violation of laws or regulation, error trades of breaches of security, or may materially impact the performance or impact the integrity or stability of the System, Tradition may, for an individual Member or all Members, temporarily suspend access to or trading through the System, to the extent required as a result of such technical problems.
- 5.4 In the event of measures being taken which materially affect the operation of the System, the Members affected thereby shall, to the extent possible, be promptly notified via the System or in the case of a System failure by other suitable electronic means.
- 5.5 If participation in trading through the System is not possible for individual Members due to technical disruptions, the System shall continue to be available to other Members, but Tradition shall be obliged to rectify such technical disruptions as soon as reasonably practicable.

CHAPTER 5 - POWERS OF TRADITION AND THE APPEALS PANEL

1 Tradition - Disciplinary Action

1.1 Tradition may:

- (a) take disciplinary action against a Member in respect of any act or omission that amounts to a material breach of these Rules in accordance with the procedures made under Chapter 5 Rule 3 below; and
- (b) suspend or restrict a Member's activities on the Platform on an interim basis when a matter is under investigation, provided that such suspension or restriction shall only be put in place where there is a reasonable suspicion that the Member has committed a material breach of these Rules.

2 Tradition - Sanctions

- 2.1 Tradition may, in its absolute discretion, impose sanctions on a Member for a material breach of the Rules constituting either or both of the following:
 - (a) temporary suspension; and
 - (b) termination of participation.

3 Tradition - Procedures

- 3.1 To achieve its overall aim to ensure the fair and orderly trading of Financial Products on the Platform, Tradition will operate procedures designed to identify breaches of, and ensure Member compliance with, the Rules, including without limitation scrutiny of trading data and reports.
- 3.2 In the event of any alleged breach or suspected breach by a Member of these Rules, Tradition shall notify the Member of the commencement of an investigation along with reasonably sufficient information to allow the Member to assess the alleged breach, save where such notification is precluded by applicable law or regulation. Where sufficient information exists regarding the cause of the alleged breach or suspected breach, such notification may include a request to the Member to take such remedial action so as to ensure the alleged breach or suspected breach does not recur.
- 3.3 Tradition will investigate the facts of each case, seeking to understand why the alleged Rule breach occurred and will assess whether any remedial action the Member has taken (pursuant to Chapter 5 Rule 3.2) is adequate to prevent similar future occurrence.
- 3.4 In each case, Tradition shall determine whether impose any of the sanctions in Chapter 5 Rule 2 in relation to a breach of the Rules. In coming to such a determination, Tradition shall take into account a number of factors, including without limitation:
 - (a) the nature and seriousness of the Rule breach and the duration and frequency of misconduct;
 - (b) how the Rule breach came to light (e.g. whether flagged by the Member under investigation);
 - (c) the actual or potential market impact of the Rule breach, and any other repercussions;

- (d) the extent to which the Rule breach was deliberate or reckless;
- (e) the compliance history of the Member under investigation, and specific history regarding the Rule breach in question and whether any warning notices have previously been issued to the Member in relation to the Rule;
- (f) consistent and fair application of the Rules (any precedents of similar Rule breaches); and
- (g) the responsiveness and conduct of the Member in relation to the matter under investigation.
- 3.5 Upon conclusion of its investigation, Tradition will decide what action is necessary in each instance and shall communicate such decision promptly to the Member (including if any action is to be taken). In addition (or in the alternative) to the sanctions described in Chapter 5 Rule 2, Tradition may, as an initial step, request that the Member concerned (where this has not already been done pursuant to Chapter 5 Rule 3.2) takes remedial action so as to ensure the breach does not recur. Alternatively, Tradition may decide to issue a warning notice to the Member concerned. Tradition shall ensure that any sanction imposed upon a Member is proportionate to the Rule breach in question and, where the sanction is a temporary suspension, such suspension shall cease when the Member has carried out remedial action to Tradition's reasonable satisfaction. For the avoidance of doubt and subject to any other relevant provision of these Rules (including without limitation Chapter 6), any investigation, action or sanction shall remain confidential.
- 3.6 During its investigation, Tradition shall permit the Member reasonable opportunity to submit petitions and/or information in relation to the alleged breach and Tradition shall take such submissions into account in reaching a conclusion as to any necessary action.
- 3.7 A Member shall cooperate with Tradition in the investigation of potential breaches by providing reasonable assistance to Tradition including the provision of information reasonably requested by Tradition, subject to regulatory and confidentiality restrictions.
- 3.8 For the avoidance of doubt, a Member shall be under no obligation to comply with a request to take remedial action made pursuant to Chapter 5 Rules 3.2 or 3.5.
- 3.9 A Member may appeal a decision of Tradition related to disciplinary action within ten (10) Trading Days of receiving notice of the decision, specifying the grounds upon which the Member is appealing and the reasons why it believes its membership should not be suspended/terminated. Appeals will be heard and decided by the Appeals Panel.

4 Appeals Panel – Procedures

- 4.1 Following a referral to the Appeals Panel pursuant to Chapter 5 Rule 3.7, the Appeals Panel shall convene and make a determination, by majority vote, on the matter within twenty (20) Trading Days of receipt of notice of appeal from the Member. Such determination shall be to uphold, quash or amend the original decision that is the subject of the appeal.
- 4.2 A Member shall cooperate with the Appeals Panel in the determination of the appeal by providing reasonable assistance to the Appeals Panel including the provision of information reasonably requested by the Appeals Panel, subject to regulatory and confidentiality restrictions.

Tradition.			

The Appeals Panel's determination shall be final and binding upon the relevant Member and

4.3

CHAPTER 6 - COOPERATION WITH REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

- 1 Tradition, which is the operator of the Platform, is authorised and regulated by the FCA in the UK. Tradition will report to the FCA any significant breaches of the Rules, disorderly trading conditions and conduct that may involve Market Abuse, in each case only as are required to be reported to the FCA under applicable law or regulation.
- Save where it is required to do so by operation of law or by virtue of an order of a court of competent jurisdiction or to comply with its obligations to provide information to a governmental or multinational organisation or agency (including, but not limited to, the FCA) or where it is required or permitted pursuant to any other provision of these Rules, Tradition shall not disclose any information provided by, or relating to, a Member without the express authorisation of the Member in question.
- In addition to its obligations to the FCA, Tradition will assist in any investigation conducted in relation to trading on the Platform, whether by the FCA or another competent authority. This Rule 3 is subject to Rule 2 above.

CHAPTER 7 OTHER PROVISIONS

1 Obligation to Cooperate

Solely to the extent necessary to enable Tradition to monitor a Member's compliance with these Rules, each Member which participates directly in trading on the Platform through its trader system located outside the United Kingdom must, to the extent permitted by law, ensure that all installations operated outside the United Kingdom (trader systems, input devices, etc), as well as the activities of such Member conducted within the scope of the use of such devices, may be subject to inspection (upon prior arrangement, during business hours and on a working day at the relevant location) by Tradition or its authorised agents, subject to reasonable notice and confidentiality, regulatory and policy compliance restrictions. The same shall apply if a Member participates in trading on the Platform by means of input devices outside the United Kingdom which are connected to a trader system within the United Kingdom.

2 Notice

- 2.1 Except as otherwise specified in these Rules, any notice or other communication in connection with these Rules (each, a "**Notice**") shall be:
 - (a) in writing in English; and
 - (b) delivered by hand, fax, registered post or by courier using an internationally recognised courier company.
- 2.2 The address and facsimile number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of Tradition for any Notice is:

Address: Beaufort House, 15 St Botolph Street, London, EC3A 7QX. For the attention of Head of Energy

Fax: +44 207 454 9405. For the attention of Head of Energy

- 2.3 The address and facsimile number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of a Member is the address and facsimile number so notified by the applicant in their application pack, as may be amended by notification to Tradition from time to time by not less than five (5) Business Days' notice.
- 2.4 A Notice shall be effective upon receipt and shall be deemed to have been received:
 - (a) at the time of delivery, if delivered by hand, registered post or courier; or
 - (b) at the time of transmission in legible form, if delivered by fax.
- 2.5 Where any Notice is be sent by email in accordance with these Rules, that Notice shall be effective upon receipt and shall be deemed to have been received when the email has been delivered to, and received by, the email servers of the recipient.

3 Use and Exploitation of Data

Tradition is entitled to all rights of use and exploitation of the data entered into the System as well as the data resulting therefrom. Tradition is entitled to disseminate such data and market information and may charge a fee therefor. In particular, Tradition may, under observance of the anonymity of the Members, perform and distribute statistical evaluations and analyses of

the market. Neither Tradition nor the Members shall be held liable for the correctness and completeness of the data, market information, market analyses and statistical evaluations distributed by Tradition.

APPENDIX 1

FINANCIAL PRODUCTS TRADEABLE ON THE PLATFORM: COMMODITIES

1 Commodities – product types

1.1 The following product types shall be eligible for admission to and capable of being traded on the Platform:

Coal	Gas	Power	Emissions
Africa (API4)	Asia (LNG)	Austrian	CER
Asia (Indo,			
China)	Austrian	Belgium	ERU
Australasia			
(API8)	Belgium	Bosnia	EUA
Europe (API2)	Czech	Bulgaria	
	France	Croatia	
	Germany	Czech	
	Holland	France	
	Italy	Germany	1
	UK	Greece]
		Holland	
		Hungary	
		Italy	1
		Montenegro	1
		Poland	1
		Romania]
		Serbia]
		Slovak	
		Slovenia	1
		Spain	1
		Switzerland	1
		Turkey	1

plus any other commodity product as may be added by Tradition from time to time.

2 Commodities - Orders

- 2.1 Prices shall remain valid, until changed or cancelled by the Member.
- 2.2 The following order types are supported:
 - (a) 'Day': The order will be valid during the current normal trading session only.
 - (b) 'Good 'Til Date': The order will participate in all normal trading sessions incurred until and including the specified date.

- (c) 'Good 'Til Cancelled': The order will participate in all normal trading sessions until cancelled by the Member.
- (d) 'All Or Nothing': All (but not part) of the order must be filled in order for the order to be executed against.
- 2.3 All orders must meet the minimum size levels specified from time to time.

3 Commodities - Clearing and Settlement

3.1 Where a Financial Product is eligible for clearing and settlement, the counterparties to any Financial Product transaction can instruct Tradition to submit such transaction to the applicable clearing house for clearing and settlement.

4 Commodities - Trading Days and timings

- 4.1 Trading on the Platform for commodities shall take place on each Business Day. Tradition reserves the right to determine additional Trading Days after prior announcement thereof to the Members. For the purposes of this paragraph, "Business Day" means every weekday in London other than Easter Monday, Christmas Day and New Year's Day and such other public holidays as may be market convention for a particular market.
- 4.2 Trading on the Platform will be available between 07.00 and 17.00 (GMT/BST) or for such other periods as may be determined by Tradition and made known to all Members in accordance with Chapter 1, Rule 3.

Voice Trading Protocol

- 1. Tradition Voice Broker (the "Tradition Broker") role: the Tradition Broker may input, amend, cancel orders on a Member's authorised trader's behalf.
- 2. Tradition's operations team will have the authorisation to cancel unmatched orders on behalf of a Member.
- 3. The Tradition Broker cannot be responsible for delays in carrying out a request by the Member's authorised trader that results in the trade being filled electronically or a trade being missed. The Tradition Broker will use reasonable endeavors to fill the request in a responsible and timely manner.
- 4. A voice order from a Member's authorised trader to a Tradition Broker to hit an electronic bid or take an electronic offer (hybrid order) will not, in itself, be a guarantee to trade. The Tradition Brokers will use reasonable endeavors to get the order filled but the only guarantee to trade on an electronic price is the Member's authorised trader trading direct ("click and trade") which is itself subject to system latency and electronic communications delays.
- 5. It is the Member's authorised trader's (and ultimately the Member's) sole responsibility to monitor its own electronic trading flow and execution. Neither Tradition, nor the Tradition

Broker, is responsible for reporting the electronic trades that Members have executed on the Platform, except as otherwise stated in the Rules.